
 
 

 

City of Keene Planning Board  
 

AGENDA 
 

Monday, January 22, 2024  6:30 PM City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 
 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call 
 

II. Election of Chair, Vice Chair, & Steering Committee 
 

III. Minutes of Previous Meeting – December 18, 2023 
 
IV. Final Vote on Conditional Approvals 

 
V. Extension Requests 

 
1. SPR-897, Modification #1 & SWP-CUP-04-21 – Site Plan & Surface Water Conditional 

Use Permit – U-Haul of South Keene, 472 Winchester St – Applicant Fieldstone Land 
Consultants, on behalf of owner Amerco Real Estate Company, requests a first extension 
to the deadline to achieve active and substantial development for the Site Plan & Surface 
Water CUP applications, SPR-897 Modification #1 1 & SWP-CUP-04-21, for the renovation 
of two existing buildings, the construction of a ~12,175 sf building, and the installation of 
~28,900 sf of pre-fabricated storage units on the new U-Haul of South Keene site at 472 
Winchester St (TMP #115-020-000). The parcel is 7.38 ac and is located in the Industrial 
District. 
 

2. SPR-790, Modification #1 – Site Plan – Summit Packaging Addition – Applicant Keach-
Nordstrom Associates Inc., on behalf of owner Summit Packaging Systems LLC, requests 
a first extension to the deadline to satisfy the precedent conditions of approval for the Site 
Plan application, SPR-790 Modification #1, for the construction of a ~6,400 sf addition to 
the existing ~6,250 sf Summit Packaging Systems building and associated site 
modifications. The parcel is 1.98 ac and is located in the Industrial District. 
 

VI. Public Hearings 
 

1. SPR-03-19, Modification #3 – Site Plan – Keene Mini Storage New Building, 678 
Marlboro Rd - Applicant SVE Associates, on behalf of owner Keene Mini Storage LLC, 
proposes to construct a ~5,200 sf climate-controlled storage building on the property at 
678 Marlboro Rd (TMP #241-107-000). The parcel is 9.5 ac and is located in the Industrial 
District. 
 

1 of 51



 
 

2. PB-2024-01 – Surface Water Protection Conditional Use Permit – 186 Gunn Rd - 
Applicants and owners Ashley & Peter Greene request a reduction in the Surface Water 
Protection buffer from 75’ to 30’ to allow for the future subdivision and development of 
the parcel at 186 Gunn Rd (TMP #205-013-000). The parcel is 11 ac and is located in the 
Rural District. 

 
VII. Master Plan Update 

 
VIII. Staff Updates 

a. Overview of Administrative and Minor Project approvals issued in 2023. 
b. Capital Improvement Program  
c. Project naming conventions 

 
IX. New Business 

 
X. Upcoming Dates of Interest 
 Joint Committee of the Planning Board and PLD – February 12th, 6:30 PM 
 Planning Board Steering Committee – February 13th, 11:00 AM 
 Planning Board Site Visit –February 21st, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 
 Planning Board Meeting – February 26th, 6:30 PM 

 

2 of 51



City of Keene 1 
New Hampshire 2 

 3 
 4 

PLANNING BOARD 5 
MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 
Monday, December 18, 2023 6:30 PM Council Chambers, 
            City Hall  8 
Members Present: 
Harold Farrington, Chair 
Emily Lavigne-Bernier  
Roberta Mastrogiovanni 
Armando Rangel 
Ryan Clancy 
Kenneth Kost, Alternate (Voting) 

Members Not Present: 
David Orgaz, Vice Chair  
Mayor George S. Hansel 
Councilor Michael Remy 
Randyn Markelon, Alternate 
Gail Somers, Alternate 
Tammy Adams, Alternate 

Staff Present: 
Jesse Rounds, Community Development 
Director 
Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
 

 9 
I)     Call to Order 10 
 11 
Chair Farrington called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and a roll call was taken. 12 
 13 
II)    Minutes of Previous Meeting – November 13, 2023 & November 27, 2023 14 
 15 
November 13 Meeting Minutes: Ryan Clancey recused himself from approving the November 13 16 
minutes as he was not present. A motion was made by Roberta Mastrogiovanni that the Planning 17 
Board approve the November 13, 2023 meeting minutes. The motion was seconded by Emily 18 
Lavigne-Bernier and was unanimously approved.  19 
 20 
November 27 Meeting Minutes: Chair Farrington offered the following correction - Line 251 – 21 
change the word “driveway” to “crosswalk.” 22 
 23 
A motion was made by Roberta Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board approve the November 24 
27, 2023 meeting minutes as amended. The motion was seconded by Emily Lavigne-Bernier and 25 
was unanimously approved.  26 
 27 
 28 

3 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 2 of 8 
 

III) Final Vote on Conditional Approvals 29 
 30 
The Chairman stated this is a standing agenda item. As a matter of practice, the Board issues a 31 
final vote on all conditionally approved plans after all of the “conditions precedent” have been 32 
met. This final vote will be the final approval and will start the 30-day appeal clock. 33 
 34 
Ms. Brunner stated there is one application that is ready for final approval tonight. It is a boundary 35 
line adjustment application for the properties at 26 Prospect Street and 361 Court Street - S-04-23. 36 
There were four conditions of approval: (1) Submittal of four full size paper copies, Mylar copies 37 
and a digital copy of the final plan; (2) The owner’s signature appears on the plan; Submittal of a 38 
check to cover the cost of recording fees; Inspection of lot monuments by the Public Works 39 
Director or their designee to ensure that the monuments have been set. All conditions have been 40 
met. 41 
 42 
A motion was made by Roberta Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board issue final site plan 43 
approval for S-04-23. The motion was seconded by Emily Lavigne-Bernier and was unanimously 44 
approved. 45 
 46 
IV) Adoption of 2024 Meeting Schedule 47 

 48 
Ms. Brunner noted to the Board that the December meeting in 2024 falls on December 23rd and 49 
asked if the Board wanted to move up the meeting by a week to December 16th. Mr. Clancy felt 50 
that would be a better change, Mr. Rangel agreed. It was agreed that the December 2024 meeting 51 
would be changed to the 16th. 52 
 53 
A motion was made by Roberta Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board approve the 2024 meeting 54 
schedule as amended. The motion was seconded by Emily Lavigne-Bernier and was unanimously 55 
approved. 56 
 57 
V) Master Plan Steering Committee – Continued Discussion 58 
 59 
Ms. Brunner reminded the Board that this project has been planned in the City’s Capital 60 
Improvement Program for a number of years. It was initially scheduled to start a few years ago but 61 
was delayed due to several factors, such as COVID. She stated her presentation tonight has three 62 
parts. The first part is explaining the Planning Board’s role, the second would be the timeline and 63 
process, and the third would be the process to nominate the individuals for the Steering Committee. 64 
 65 
Ms. Brunner stated a Master Plan is a long-range planning document that serves as a guide for 66 
citywide growth and development, as well as major capital investments. It is also the foundation 67 
or the basis for public policy, including zoning and land use decisions. There are two mandatory 68 
sections of the Master Plan. The first is a vision section and the second is a land use section. Those 69 
are the only two sections that are required under state law. Having a Master Plan with those two 70 
sections is a prerequisite for having things like a zoning ordinance, creating a historic district, or 71 
having a Capital Improvement Program. In addition to those two mandatory sections, there are 15 72 
optional sections outlined in the state RSA, which Ms. Brunner referred to in her PowerPoint 73 
presentation.   74 

4 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 3 of 8 
 

The state also recommends that a Master Plan be updated every five to ten years.  State statue also 75 
outlines the process for adoption. 76 
 77 
The Master Plan is initially adopted by the Planning Board after a duly-noticed public hearing, 78 
which requires a 10-day notice period. It can be adopted section by section. Amendments and 79 
updates to the Master Plan are adopted following that same process. In Keene, similar to many 80 
other communities in New Hampshire, the Planning Board also refers the plan to the City Council 81 
for their endorsement prior to adoption, which Ms. Brunner noted was an important step. The City 82 
Council implements the Master Plan through the budgeting process. 83 
 84 
Ms.  Brunner went on to say the CIP includes a budget for the Master Plan for two years. The City 85 
is in a pre-project preparation phase, which has two major steps. The first one is the formation of 86 
a project Steering Committee. Ms. Brunner stated originally staff’s proposal was that the Steering 87 
Committee members would be nominated by the Planning Board and confirmed by City Council. 88 
Based on feedback staff received from the Planning Board, staff consulted with the City Attorney 89 
and proposed an alternate process whereby they asked individuals to be nominated by the Mayor 90 
with input from the Planning Board Chair and then confirmed by the Planning Board. The City 91 
Attorney felt that this should be a committee of the Planning Board as the role in adopting the 92 
Master Plan lies with the Board. The intention was to have the Steering Committee to start meeting 93 
in January 2024 and their role would be to provide overall direction and guidance on the project.  94 
 95 
Ms. Brunner went on to say the second task staff has been working on is hiring a consultant, 96 
professional consulting firm, or team of firms to help with all phases of the project. There is a 97 
recommendation for a consultant that will be going to City Council on Thursday.  98 
 99 
Once the project officially launches, the first phase will be an update to the Keene Community 100 
Vision and an update to the community snapshot. Ms. Brunner explained that the community 101 
snapshot outlines the community’s statistics and trends, such as socioeconomic data, demographic 102 
data, public health indicators, housing statistics, etc. The Community Wide Vision is the part of 103 
the project that will involve the most robust public engagement. This work would be completed in 104 
Phase One and the goal is to get this work done in nine months. 105 
 106 
Phase Two would be the drafting of the Comprehensive Master Plan and the future land use map. 107 
This phase includes drafting and writing the plan, the development of graphics, developing the 108 
future land use map, and creating the final document layout. Ms. Brunner stated during this phase, 109 
the consultant would continue to work with staff, the Steering Committee, and the Technical 110 
Advisory Committee and continue public engagement and communication. 111 
 112 
The final phase would be adoption, which staff hopes will start in July 2025. The process is for the 113 
Steering Committee to make a recommendation that the Master Plan be adopted. It would then go 114 
to City Council for review and endorsement. The Planning Board would then hold a public hearing, 115 
which would include a 10-day notice, and adopt the Master Plan. This concluded the staff 116 
presentation. 117 
 118 
Mr. Clancy asked when staff presented this project to the Board in July what the budget for the 119 
project was. Ms. Bruner stated the City Council, through the Capital Improvement Program, had 120 

5 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 4 of 8 
 

approved $50,000 for FY24 and $40,000 in FY25. At this point in time, through the budgeting 121 
process, only $50,000 has been allocated. Ms. Brunner went on to say that when the City issued 122 
an RFQ for the project in October all of the responses were in the range of $160,000 to $175,000. 123 
As a result, staff is requesting that City Council allocate additional funding to this project to 124 
account for that difference in the budget.  125 
 126 
Mr. Clancy asked what was said in the July meeting that made staff feel that the Board did not 127 
want to be part of the search committee process for the consultant. He pointed out that the search 128 
committee did not have any Planning Board members, which is of concern to him. Ms. Brunner in 129 
response stated that staff followed their typical bidding procedures to form the selection 130 
committee. She stated that typically the process that is followed is to create a selection committee. 131 
More often than not, unless it is a large project, it consists just of staff. However, in this instance, 132 
because this is a large project, the City wanted to include someone from City Council who was 133 
also on the proposed Master Plan Steering Committee.  134 
 135 
Phil Jones was a proposed member of the Steering Committee when the committee was formed 136 
last September. He was also involved in the Master Plan process in 2010. The selection committee 137 
of five people included the City’s Marketing and Communications Director, Rebecca Landry; the 138 
Parks, Recreation and Facilities Director, Andrew Bohannon; the Community Development 139 
Director, Jesse Rounds; Ms.  Brunner; and Councilor Jones. Mr. Clancy stated that in July the 140 
Board was told the Steering Committee members would be part of the selection committee, and 141 
does understand the selection of Phil Jones, but noted there is no Steering Committee in place yet.  142 
Hence, questioned what the Board might have said that might have changed staff’s nomination 143 
process for the selection committee.  Ms.  Brunner stated there was nothing indicated by the Board, 144 
and noted that the Steering Committee has not yet been formed and there is someone who is 145 
proposed to be on the Steering Committee who served on this selection committee.  146 
 147 
Chair Farrington noted there might be one item missing from the project planning process, which 148 
is input from someone regarding expected trends – things we can expect in the future regarding 149 
transportation, energy, etc. Ms. Brunner stated the consultant firm being recommended (called 150 
Future IQ) will focus on trends and what the future will bring. 151 
 152 
Mr. Kost stated his understanding of the Comprehensive Master Plan is that it is a tool for the 153 
Planning Board to base its decisions on. He asked that the consultant keeps this in mind – a clear 154 
process checklist for the Board to utilize.   155 
 156 
Mr. Clancy felt $160,000 seems like a lot for a Master Plan update. He felt there are items on the 157 
current Master Plan that have not yet been accomplished. He felt what is being proposed seems 158 
like a complete overhaul of the Master Plan. He asked what the purpose of the committee was - 159 
will they guide the City through the process or are they supposed to deliver the final result. Ms. 160 
Brunner stated the Steering Committee’s role is to guide the process and also what is being 161 
proposed is somewhere between a complete overhaul and an update. She added that the vast 162 
majority of the work the consultant will be doing is the public outreach and updating the snapshot. 163 
Public outreach is about 50% of the cost. She also added that staff does realize that the cost 164 
originally included in the budget is much less than what is being proposed. She noted costs across 165 
the board in all aspects have increased dramatically. Staff did reach out to other communities in 166 

6 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 5 of 8 
 

the area and their cost for updating their Master Plans were very close to what Keene is proposing. 167 
Ms. Brunner went on to say that if the public engagement component was deleted, the cost could 168 
probably be reduced to around $120,000, but staff would then not be able to complete the kind of 169 
public engagement the community would be looking for.  170 
 171 
Ms. Brunner then addressed the Steering Committee. The purpose of the Steering Committee is to 172 
provide guidance to the Planning Board, City staff, and the consultants throughout the course of 173 
the Master Plan update project. There will be regular monthly meeting times for the Steering 174 
Committee and they will also hold meetings as needed. It is expected that the committee will be 175 
asked to weigh in on things like the community engagement plan, ideas for outreach, different 176 
groups that should be brought in, different voices in the community that should be heard from, 177 
feedback on the overall structure or outline of the plan, and provide input on sections of the Master 178 
Plan that need updating.  179 
 180 
Ms. Brunner stated that from the inception, the proposal was to include a mix of Planning Board 181 
members, City Councilors, and residents as part of the committee. Staff felt it was important to 182 
include both the Planning Board and the City Council, as these are the two bodies that are going 183 
to be voting on this plan. However, staff also wanted to include leaders from the community that 184 
represent different sectors that are important for both current and future City planning. Ms. 185 
Brunner referred to a slide that included a list of the sectors that were considered for inclusion on 186 
the Steering Committee. Staff developed this list in July, and it was shared with the Planning Board 187 
Chair, the Mayor, the City Manager, and the Economic Development Director for their input. As 188 
part of this process, parallel to the Steering Committee, there is also going to be a Technical 189 
Advisory Committee, which is formed by the City Manager that will include City Staff with other 190 
perspectives, such as emergency management, infrastructure, recreation facilities, etc.  191 
 192 
Once those categories were identified, staff met with the Mayor, the City Manager, and Planning 193 
Board Chair and asked for a list of suggested names and/or institutions. This meeting happened in 194 
August. From September through October, staff started reaching out to different individuals and 195 
invited them to participate. There was a one-page overview sheet given to each person that 196 
explained what the Master Plan was, its importance, the schedule, and what their commitment was 197 
going to be. Staff also had to confirm that any person chosen to serve on the committee was a 198 
Keene resident.  199 
 200 
The draft roster was shared with the Mayor for approval and then sent to the Planning Board for 201 
its approval. Based on the input received at the last meeting, the Chairman has been working with 202 
the Mayor-Elect to identify individuals to respond to concerns raised last month. Ms. Brunner 203 
stated that the Board has an updated list of members, but noted one correction. Slot 6 lists Mark 204 
Doyon from the Keene State College Facilities Department as being one of the proposed members, 205 
but this individual is now being replaced by Leatrice Oram, the Chief of Staff in the President’s 206 
Office. There are now 13 voting members and 4 alternates. The tentative meeting time is the first 207 
Tuesday of each month at 6:30 pm. All Steering Committee meetings will be publicly noticed, the 208 
agenda will be posted, and the public will be able to attend.  209 
 210 
A motion was made by Roberta Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board establish a Master Plan 211 
Steering Committee to help guide the City of Keene Master Plan update and appoint the individuals 212 

7 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 6 of 8 
 

nominated by the Mayor and Planning Board Chair as listed on the memo to the Planning Board 213 
dated December 18, 2023. The motion was seconded by Emily Lavigne-Bernier. 214 
 215 
Mr. Clancy stated that during the last City elections, the Mayor and Councilor Remy wrote a letter 216 
regarding a conflict of interest and the ethics of the City. Even though there was nothing backing 217 
those accusations in the City Code of Conduct, he felt there is an ethics concern here, which he 218 
felt could help spark the direction the City goes in terms of the representation of this Board.  219 
 220 
He noted there are six members at the meeting tonight voting on the Steering Committee, four of 221 
whom are nominated to serve on the Steering Committee. Even though it is not in any Robert’s 222 
Rules of Order or Bylaws, he felt there is an ethical concern in members voting for themselves. 223 
He felt even though this is a good list, it could have been better and creates an echo chamber that 224 
has been felt in the City for a long time - 5 Planning Board members, 3 councilors, and the Mayor-225 
Elect being a part of it. He requested that the individuals nominated tonight consider their conflict 226 
of interest in this matter. 227 
 228 
Ms. Lavigne-Bernier stated she appreciates this viewpoint and agrees it is “odd” to vote for 229 
yourself. However, one issue is that she would not be serving on this Board after tonight, the 230 
second is that she is a Planning Board member, but is also very much a community member and 231 
felt affiliation goes way beyond Planning Board representation. She stated that she does however, 232 
understand the concern. 233 
 234 
Chair Farrington stated the list before the Board is an improvement, and each month it is revised 235 
it is likely to keep getting better; however, then you run this risk of jeopardizing the timeline for 236 
getting the update completed. He stated that he is comfortable with this list and would like to move 237 
forward with the vote. 238 
 239 
Mr. Clancy stated he appreciates wanting to move this item forward, but one of his questions is 240 
efficiency versus representation of this community. He noted the three downtown businesses 241 
involved in the Steering Committee are businesses on the same block and felt there could be some 242 
more diversity. With respect to Council representation, he that stated he was surprised Chair Kate 243 
Bosley of the PLD Committee was not on the Steering Committee as she was one of the largest 244 
recipients of votes in the last two elections (at large). She is also a great advocate for the 245 
community and creates great conversation. He stated he was also surprised not to see Pam Russell-246 
Slack, former Chair of the Planning Board, not being considered as well as Donovan Fenton, who 247 
was not only elected to the State, but also gives us a voice as to what the state is involved in.  248 
 249 
He stated he understands the desire to move forward – this is a good list, but not the best list. He 250 
also felt 17 members would not be efficient and would end up being too many voices. Mr. Clancy 251 
went on to say in looking at other communities, he did not see any other community exceeding 252 
nine members on the Master Plan Steering Committee. He asked whether the Board could omit 253 
individuals from this list and add people to the list. Mr. Rounds stated the Board could add and 254 
delete individuals as this is the Board’s committee. Mr. Clancy went on to say even though Ms. 255 
Lavigne-Bernier is stepping down from the Planning Board that during his Board member 256 
orientation, the City Attorney advised him that if he is in a room with other Planning Board 257 
members and there was a quorum, it could be considered a Board meeting. He felt that with such 258 

8 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 7 of 8 
 

a large presence of Board members on the committee, it could deter other Board members from 259 
attending group sessions for the Master Plan. He noted that for the 2010 Master Plan update there 260 
was only one current Board member on the Steering Committee.  261 
 262 
Chair Farrington stated his understanding is the issue with quorum is only when you are talking 263 
about specific proposals that come before the Board, and did not feel what is discussed at a Steering 264 
Committee has the danger of turning into a Planning Board meeting when discussing Master Plan 265 
issues.  He added that the Master Plan is the responsibility of the Board and this Steering 266 
Committee is intended to work on that. He went on to say that the Steering Committee can invite 267 
people in at any time and expects that to happen. The Steering Committee will not be discussing 268 
specific applications. 269 
 270 
Ms. Mastrogiovanni asked whether the Planning Board has the final say. Someone on the Board 271 
or staff answered in the affirmative. Ms. Mastrogiovanni asked the Board to keep in mind that 272 
there are several members on this Planning Board who are also community members and business 273 
owners who are not on the Steering Committee. She agreed that this is a large roster and could 274 
create an issue with Planning Board quorum. However, if the Board does have a final say, the 275 
Board does consist of a good mix of people, and hence she was comfortable in the process. Ms. 276 
Mastrogiovanni added she was not happy with the election process, but felt it was too late to do 277 
anything about it.  278 
 279 
Mr. Kost felt the purpose of the Steering Committee is to provide guidance; communicate with the 280 
community; obtain information; etc. He stated that he did not feel they would be driving decisions 281 
or pushing down agendas, but instead helping to shape the process. He asked for clarification from 282 
staff. Ms. Brunner agreed and added that staff’s goal initially was to have a nine-member 283 
committee. She explained that all individuals staff reached out to agreed to serve on the committee 284 
and after last month’s discussion about adding diversity, more people were added to the list. She 285 
added she was not too concerned about the size of the committee and felt that the challenge would 286 
be finding a meeting time. She added that there will be additional outreach and engagement of the 287 
community beyond the Steering Committee and explained that the Committee’s role is more 288 
related to guidance. 289 
 290 
Mr. Clancy noted it is a large committee with half of the membership coming from City 291 
representatives. In addition, he expressed concern about the project cost of $160,000. 292 
 293 
Ms. Lavigne-Bernier asked whether Mr. Clancy could see the benefit of her being on the 294 
committee. She stated that for instance, she will not only be a former Planning Board member, but 295 
she is also a business owner and someone who has been advocating for childcare in this community 296 
and has reached out to different sectors to assist with that. She felt that the updated list is much 297 
more diverse. 298 
 299 
The motion was tabled. 300 
 301 
Mr. Jay Kahn addressed the Board next and stated he hoped the Board values the updated list. He 302 
and the Chairman have discussed the membership and have added some diversity to address the 303 
concerns raised by the Board last month. He did not feel it should be tabled to update it again. He 304 

9 of 51



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
December 18, 2023 

Page 8 of 8 
 

felt the names on the list would bring value to the discussion. Mr. Kahn stated he sees the end 305 
result as being very collaborative.  306 
 307 
A motion was made by Roberta Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board establish a Master Plan 308 
Steering Committee to help guide the City of Keene Master Plan update and appoint the individuals 309 
nominated by the Mayor and Planning Board Chair as listed on the memo to the Planning Board 310 
dated December 18, 2023.  311 
 312 
The motion was seconded by Emily Lavigne-Bernier and was approved with Mr. Clancy 313 
abstaining from the vote. 314 
 315 
VI) Staff Updates 316 
 317 
None 318 
 319 
VII) New Business 320 
 321 
None 322 
 323 
VIII) Upcoming Dates of Interest  324 
 Joint Committee of the Planning Board and PLD – January 8th, 6:30 PM  325 
 Planning Board Steering Committee – January 9th, 11:00 AM  326 
 Planning Board Site Visit –January 17th, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 327 
 Planning Board Meeting – January 22nd, 6:30 PM 328 
 329 
The meeting adjourned at 7:32 pm 330 
 331 
Respectfully submitted by, 332 
Krishni Pahl, Minute Taker 333 
 334 
Reviewed and edited by, 335 
Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 336 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 337 

10 of 51



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
December 21, 2023 
 
 
 
City of Keene Planning Board        
Attn: Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
City Hall - 4th Floor 
3 Washington Street-  
Keene, NH 0343 
 
 
RE:   SPR-897 
 U-Haul of South Keene – 472 Winchester Street  

1st Extension Request for Active and Substantial Development 
 
 

Dear Planning Board, 
 
Fieldstone Land Consultants, on behalf of U-Haul of South Keene, is hereby submitting this 
letter to request an extension for completing active and substantial development for this project.  
The current deadline for this milestone is December 21, 2023 and this request is need due to 
delays experienced in securing project permitting through FEMA.  Due to these delays this 
project will be completed in two phases and the first phase is currently under construction while 
the permitting for phase 2 is still in process. 
 
We appreciate your consideration and look forward to addressing any questions that you may 
have. 
 
Best Regards, 
FIELDSTONE LAND CONSULTANTS, PLLC 

 
Chad E. Branon, PE 
Project Engineer 

11 of 51



12 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

SPR-03-19, MOD. 3 – SITE PLAN REVIEW – KEENE MINI STORAGE EXPANSION #2 – 678 
MARLBORO ROAD 

 
Request: 
Applicant SVE Associates, on behalf of owner Keene Mini Storage LLC, proposes to construct a 
~5,200 sf climate-controlled storage building on the property at 678 Marlboro Rd (TMP #241-107-
000). The parcel is 9.5 ac and is located in the Industrial District. 
 
Background: 
The subject parcel is an 
existing 9.5-acre lot 
located on the north side of 
NH Rt. 101 (Marlboro Rd) 
between the intersection 
with Graves Rd to the east 
and Thompson Rd to the 
west. The property is an 
industrial site containing 
several buildings used for 
office, storage, and 
warehousing uses. An 
existing fueling station also 
exists on the property. 
Keene Mini Storage offers 
both drive up storage units 
and climate-controlled 
storage units and intends 
to expand the amount of 
climate-controlled storage 
with this application.  
 
The purpose of this 
application is to construct a 
free standing 5,200 sf building within the site in order to create additional climate-controlled 
storage units available to rent. The building will be located adjacent to the existing 10,725 sf 
climate-controlled storage building. The proposal includes the creation of six additional parking 
spaces and associated drainage to accommodate the new building and parking area. 
 
Determination of Regional Impact: 
After reviewing the application, staff have made a preliminary evaluation that the proposed 
subdivision does not appear to have the potential for “regional impact” as defined in RSA 36:55. 
The Board will need to make a final determination as to whether the proposal, if approved, could 
have the potential for regional impact. 
 
Completeness: 
The Applicant requests exemptions from submitting a landscaping plan, lighting plan, traffic 
analysis, soil analysis, historic evaluation, screening analysis, and an architectural and visual 

Fig1: 678 Marlboro Road, outlined in yellow. 

13 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

appearance analysis. After reviewing each request, staff recommend that the Board grant the 
requested exemptions and accept the application as “complete.” 
 
Departmental Comments: 
None 
 
Application Analysis:  The following is a review of the Planning Board development standards 
relevant to this application.  
 
20.2 Drainage:  The plan proposes to install roof drains, stone infiltration strips around the 

building, and catch basins to capture new stormwater flow generated by the new building. 
The new catch basins will be tied into the existing underground drainage system on site. 
The submitted drainage summary states that the proposal will not create any adverse 
impacts to downstream properties due to stormwater runoff from the proposed 
improvements. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.3 Sediment & Erosion Control: The Applicant states in their narrative that silt fence will be 
installed to contain sediment runoff and the construction contractor will install, monitor, 
and repair all erosion control measures on a regular basis. The proposed site disturbance 
will be internal to the property and risk of sediment runoff onto adjacent properties or 
surface waters is minimal. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.4 Snow Storage & Removal: The Applicant states in their narrative that there is sufficient 
snow storage space available on site. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.5 Landscaping: No new landscaping is proposed with this application.  
This standard is not applicable.  

20.6 Screening: No new screening is proposed with this application. The proposed building is 
internal to the site and will be obscured by existing buildings that are closer to the public 
right of way. This standard is not applicable.  

20.7 Lighting: The plan proposes to install four wall pack lighting fixtures above each door. A 
16’x22’ canopy is proposed at the main entrance to the proposed building. The canopy will 
have light fixtures installed underneath that meet this standard. The wall pack fixtures 
proposed by the Applicant have a Color Rendering Index (CRI) of 70 where greater than 70 
is required by this standard. A condition of approval related to the submittal of a wall pack 
cutsheet that meets this standard is suggested below.  

20.8 Sewer & Water: The proposed building will not have water and sewer service. This 
standard is not applicable.  

20.9 Traffic & Access Management: The Applicant states in their narrative that mini storage 
units are very low traffic generators. Vehicle counts can be tracked and estimated from 
gate openings, which is done automatically. Based on the existing site utilization, the 
Applicant estimates that there are less than 10 vehicles accessing the upper-level storage 
units on any given weekday. That number increases to 20 vehicles on Saturday. The 
Applicant estimates that the proposal will increase weekday vehicles to 15 and Saturday 
vehicles to 25. 

14 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

 City Engineering staff requested that the Applicant contact NHDOT to see if they had 
concerns about the increase in site access off NH Rt. 101. NHDOT stated in an email that 
they had no concerns related to the proposal. They did note that the site’s state-issued 
driveway permit should be updated. The email from NHDOT is included in the packet for 
this application. 

 The proposal includes the addition of four regular parking spaces and two accessible 
parking spaces for a total of six new paring spaces for the new building. Bollards are 
proposed to act as vehicle stops at the end of each parking space. The associated drive 
aisle is of sufficient width to accommodate the new parking spaces. A 5 ft walking path 
is provided between the parking spaces, the existing building, and the proposed building 
in order to provide a protected walkway between the new parking spaces and the 
proposed building. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.10 Filling & Excavation: The Applicant states in their narrative that fill will be used to create 
the building platform and slopes. Site access for the property is from NH R. 101 and traffic 
impacts due to the hauling of fill will not adversely impact the surrounding area. It appears 
that this standard has been met. 

20.11 Surface Waters & Wetlands: The Applicant states in their narrative that the proposal will 
not impact existing surface waters and there are no wetlands located on the property. The 
property is exempt from NHDES Shoreland Protection regulations due to its historically 
built-up nature, and the proposed new building and site modifications are located outside 
the 30-ft surface water protection buffer. It appears that this standard has been met. 

20.12 Hazardous & Toxic Materials: The Applicant states in their narrative that there will not be 
any hazardous or toxic materials stored on site. It appears that this standard has been 
met. 

20.13  Noise: The Applicant states in their narrative that the proposed expansion of the existing 
mini storage operation will not generate any new noise. It appears that this standard has 
been met. 

20.14 Architecture & Visual Appearance: The Applicant states in their narrative that the 
proposed architectural appearance of the new building will match the existing climate 
control storage building on site. The proposed building will have corrugated metal walls 
with a metal rigid awning over the main entrance. The building will be 80 ft wide, and the 
awning will be 22 ft wide.  

Fig2: Front elevation 

15 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

 
 
Section 20.14.3.E states that, “A cohesive visual character shall be maintained within a 
development through the use of coordinated hardscape (e.g. paving materials, lighting, 
outdoor furniture, etc.) and landscape treatments.”  The Board will need to determine if 
this standard has been met. 

 
Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended:  

“Approve SPR-03-19, Mod. 3, as shown on the plan identified as “Keene Mini Storage Expansion 
2023/2024” prepared by SVE Associates at a scale of 1 in. = 20 ft. dated December 18, 2023 
and the architectural elevations prepared by SVE Associates with no scale dated December 18, 
2023 with the following conditions: 

1. Prior to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following 
conditions precedent shall be met: 

A. Owner’s signature appears on the plan set. 

B. Submittal of security for sedimentation and erosion control and “as built” 
plans in a form and amount acceptable to the City Engineer.” 

C. Submittal of a revised lighting cut sheet for wall packs with a CRI of greater 
than 70 and a revised drainage summary with the P.E. stamp on it. 

D. Submittal of five full-size paper copies and one digital copy of the final plan. 

2. Subsequent to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the 
following conditions shall be met: 

A. Prior to the commencement of site work, the Community Development 
Department shall be notified when all erosion control measures are installed 
and the Community Development Director, or their designee, shall inspect the 
erosion control measures to ensure compliance with this site plan and all City 
of Keene regulations.”  

Fig2: Left elevation 

16 of 51



17 of 51



18 of 51



19 of 51



20 of 51



21 of 51



22 of 51



23 of 51



24 of 51



25 of 51



26 of 51



DATE:

PROJ. #:

ELEVATIONS

c

SHEET

E-1
DESIGN:  RH

DRAWN: AJG

SVE 2023

Engineering
Planning
Landscape Architecture
Surveying

SVE Associates
P.O. Box 1818
439 West River Road
Brattleboro, VT 05302
T   802.257.0561
F   802.257.0721
www.sveassoc.com

-DEC- 2318

K2505AK2505A

KEENE MINI STORAGE

KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
690 MARLBORO ROAD

KEENE MINI STORAGE
EXPANSION 2023/2024

27 of 51



28 of 51



29 of 51



30 of 51



31 of 51



32 of 51



33 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

PB-2024-01 – SURFACE WATER CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – SURFACE WATER BUFFER 
REDUCTION – 186 GUNN ROAD 

 
Request: 
Applicants and owners Ashley & Peter Greene request a reduction in the Surface Water Protection 
buffer from 75’ to 30’ to allow for the future subdivision and development of the parcel at 186 
Gunn Rd (TMP #205-013-000). The parcel is 11 ac and is located in the Rural District. 
 
Background: 
The subject parcel is an existing 11.26-acre lot located on the north side of Gunn Road, 
approximately 1,200 ft from the Gilsum town line. The Sturtevant Brook runs adjacent to the rear 
of the property.  The lot contains an existing 1,900 sf single family residence and a detached 1,320 
sf pole barn. An initial wetland delineation has revealed that a significant portion of the lot 
consists of wetland systems.   
 
The purpose of this application is 
to seek a Surface Water 
Protection Conditional Use 
Permit for a surface water buffer 
reduction from 75 ft to 30 ft and 
10,870 sf of impact to the 
reduced buffer to accommodate 
the future subdivision of a new 
2.26-acre residential building lot. 
The CUP is required per Section 
11.3.1.C for a buffer reduction 
and per Section 11.6 for the 
construction of a new structure 
that impacts the buffer, the 
creation of a new lot that would 
require buffer disturbance to 
access, and for the construction 
of a new driveway that will 
impact the buffer. The submitted 
exhibit plan shows a single-
family residential development 
on the future lot that depicts well, septic, drainage, driveway, and residence.    
 
Per Section 11.6.3.A of the Land Development Code, this application has been referred to the 
Conservation Commission for review and recommendation at their meeting on January 16. Staff 
will share any advisory comments from the Commission at the Planning Board meeting.  
 
Determination of Regional Impact: 
After reviewing the application, staff have made a preliminary evaluation that the proposed 
subdivision does not appear to have the potential for “regional impact” as defined in RSA 36:55. 
The Board will need to make a final determination as to whether the proposal, if approved, could 
have the potential for regional impact. 

Fig 1: 186 Gunn Road outlined in yellow. 

34 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

Completeness: 
The Applicant requests exemptions from submitting a landscaping plan, lighting plan, building 
elevations, drainage, historic evaluation, screening analysis, and an architectural and visual 
appearance analysis. After reviewing each request, staff recommend that the Board grant the 
requested exemptions as they have no bearing on the merits of the application and accept the 
application as “complete.” 
 
Departmental Comments: 
None 
 
Application Analysis:  The following is a review of the Planning Board development standards 
relevant to this application. The Planning Board shall issue a surface water protection conditional 
use permit for the activities described in Section 11.6.1, if it finds that all of the following criteria 
have been met. 
 

A. The proposed use and/or activity cannot be located in a manner to avoid encroachment into 
the Surface Water Protection Overlay District. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the proposed use cannot be located in a manner 
that avoids encroachment with the lot being subdivided in the eastern corner of the parent 
lot. The subdivision of the proposed lot has not been formally submitted. It may be 
possible to increase the proposed lot area to further reduce the proposed impact. The 
Applicant has not proposed any permanent measures to prevent future impacts to the 
buffer or wetland after initial development. The Board will need to determine if this 
standard has been met. 
 

B. Encroachment into the buffer area has been minimized to the maximum extent possible, 
including reasonable modification of the scale or design of the proposed use. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the exhibit plan depicts a 32’x26’ 4-bedroom 
dwelling, septic system, and wellhead that do not encroach into the buffer. Further 
discussion with the applicant revealed that the total buffer impact will be 10,870 sf. This 
includes 3,080 sf of impact for the driveway and 7,790 sf of impact for the dwelling, 
wellhead, septic, and associated grading. The Board will need to determine if this standard 
has been met. 
 

C. The nature, design, siting, and scale of the proposed use and the characteristics of the site, 
including but not limited to topography, soils, vegetation, and habitat, are such that when 
taken as a whole, will avoid the potential for adverse impacts to the surface water resource. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the site has been designed to have no 
structures within 30’ of the wetland edge in order to prevent adverse impacts to the 
wetland. The dwelling will have infiltration trenches to collect runoff from the roof of the 
dwelling. Stormwater management for the driveway is not shown on the exhibit plan. The 
narrative states that Red Spruce trees are proposed along the edge of grading to aid in 
soil stability and buffer identification. The Board will need to determine if this standard 
has been met. 
 

35 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

D. The surface water buffer area shall be left in a natural state to the maximum extent possible. 
The Planning Board may establish conditions of approval regarding the preservation of the 
buffer, including the extent to which trees, saplings and ground cover shall be preserved. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the buffer will remain in its natural state except 
for the required impacts due to site development. Erosion control measures will be 
installed prior to site development and maintained throughout the development process. 
Red Spruce trees will be installed along the edge of grading to provide a natural barrier 
along the buffer and to provide soil stabilization. The Board will need to determine if this 
standard has been met. 
 

E. The Planning Board may consider the following to determine whether allowing the 
proposed encroachment will result in an adverse impact on the surface water resource. 
 

1. The size, character, and quality of the surface water and the surface water buffer 
being encroached upon. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the wetlands are palustrine (marshy), 
forested, saturated and not to be impacted. Using the “Highway Methodology” a 
wetland evaluation was conducted and found that the wetlands adjacent to the 
building area have no suitable wetland functions or values of significant 
importance. The Board may wish to ask the applicant to provide additional context 
as to the importance of the wetland such as wildlife habitat and status as vernal 
pools. 
 

2. The location and connectivity of the surface water in relation to other surface waters 
in the surrounding watershed. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the wetland complex drains to a stream 
over 400 ft down slope. The entire wetland system on the parent lot and the 
proposed lot have not been delineated. The full connectivity of the system has not 
been evaluated. The Board may want to consider asking for additional information 
from the applicant to better understand the nature of the wetland system. 

 
3. The nature of the ecological and hydrological functions served by the surface water. 

 
The Applicant states in their narrative that, based on the evaluation, the associated 
wetland area is of low value. The vegetation density is low so that is why the 
application proposes to install trees to aid in soil stability and buffer identification. 

 
4. The nature of the topography, slopes, soils, and vegetation in the surface water 

buffer. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the average slope within the buffer is 
10% to 15% with a maximum slope to the rear of the proposed dwelling to be 22%. 
Test pit data revealed the soil composition to be fine sandy loam to sandy loam. 
The vegetation is low in density and mainly consists of Hemlock, Ash, and Maple 
with little ground cover. 

 

36 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

5. The role of the surface water buffer in mitigating soil erosion, sediment and nutrient 
transport, groundwater recharge, flood storage, and flow dispersion. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the evaluation revealed that the wetland 
serves little function related to sediment and nutrient transport, groundwater 
recharge, flood storage, and flow dispersion. 

 
6. The extent to which the surface water buffer serves as wildlife habitat or travel 

corridor. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that the wetland is not located within high 
value wildlife habitat according to the City’s Wildlife Action Plan GIS overlay. The 
area is considered supporting landscape, which is the lowest tier in the overlay. 
Gunn Road is located adjacent to the wetland and is a barrier to wildlife migration. 
The narrative notes that there is a half mile of natural woodlands behind the 
subject property that act as an effective travel corridor. 

 
7. The rate, timing and volume of stormwater runoff and its potential to influence water 

quality associated with the affected surface water or any associated downstream 
surface waters. 
 
The Applicant states in their narrative that infiltration trenches are proposed along 
the proposed dwelling to mitigate stormwater runoff. No stormwater management 
is proposed for the driveway. The Application states that the stream that the 
wetlands drain to is greater than 400 ft away and there will be no negative affects 
to the stream. 

 
8. The sensitivity of the surface water and the surface water buffer to disruption from 

changes in the grade or plant and animal habitat in the buffer zone. 
 
The Application states in their narrative that siltation and erosion control measures 
are proposed to remain until soils have been stabilized with a healthy growth of 
vegetation. Plantings along the buffer are proposed to aid in stabilization and to 
help define the buffer permanently. The narrative notes that the areas to the rear 
of the lot are to remain unaltered to allow for animal and plant habitat. 

 
The Board will need to determine if the proposed mitigation methods proposed by the Applicant 
meet the threshold outlined in section 11.3.1.C “Buffer Reduction” of the Land Development Code, 
which states, “In specific cases, the Surface Water Protection District buffer area may be reduced 
to 30-ft in zoning districts requiring a 75-ft buffer and to 10-ft in zoning districts requiring a 30-ft 
buffer, at the discretion of the Planning Board, and if the applicant provides extraordinary mitigation, 
replication, and/or restoration of surface waters and wetlands, and/or open space preservation 
measures.” (emphasis added) 
 
 
 
 

37 of 51



STAFF REPORT 
 

Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended:  

Approve PB-2024-01 as shown on the plan set identified as “Surface Water Protection Conditional 
Use Permit Exhibit” prepared by Meridian Land Services, Inc at a scale of 1 inch = 60 feet, dated 
December 14, 2023 with the following conditions: 

1. Prior to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following conditions 
precedent shall be met: 

A. Owner’s signature appears on the plan. 
B. Submittal of a revised exhibit plan with the total square footage of buffer impact noted 

on it and the certified soil scientist's stamp. 
C. Submittal of four (4) full sized paper copies and a digital copy of the final plan set. 

 
2. Subsequent to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following 

conditions shall be met: 
A. Prior to the issuance of a driveway permit or building permit for the proposed lot, a 

Stormwater Management Plan shall be submitted to the Community Development 
Department for review and approval by the City Engineer. 

B. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, submittal of a financial security for the 
proposed landscaping in a form and amount acceptable to the City Engineer shall be 
submitted. 

 

 

38 of 51



39 of 51



40 of 51



41 of 51



42 of 51



43 of 51



44 of 51


















 










L A N D E RV I C E S , N C.S I
E N G I N E E R I N G E ER RI I IG GN NS U V Y P M T T||

E E E GGS S S NNNI I I ITT PPMO L & W L A D A P C D|

MERIDIANM

31 OLD NASHUA ROAD, AMHERST, NH 03031 TEL. 603-673-1441
MERIDIANLANDSERVICES.COM FAX 603-673-1584































45 of 51



L A N D E RV I C E S , N C.S I
E N G I N E E R I N G E ER RI I IG GN NS U V Y P M T T||

E E E GGS S S NNNI I I ITT PPMO L & W L A D A P C D|

MERIDIANM

31 OLD NASHUA ROAD, AMHERST, NH 03031 TEL. 603-673-1441
MERIDIANLANDSERVICES.COM FAX 603-673-1584









46 of 51



 

 

3 Washington Street 
Keene, NH 03431 

 

(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

January 22, 2024 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Mari Brunner, Senior Planner   
 
SUBJECT: Update on Administrative Planning Project Approvals for 2023  
 
 

The following projects were reviewed administratively by Planning Staff during 2023: 
 

 
 
1. SPR-207, Modification #1 – Keene Affordable Housing Site Modifications – 657 Marlboro 

Rd: Applicant Stevens & Associates, on behalf of owner Monadnock Affordable Housing 
Corp., proposes to modify the grading and drainage patterns on the property at 657 Marlboro 
Rd (TMP #241-112-000). The parcel is 0.23 ac in size and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
2. SPR-878, Modification #2 – Volkswagen Rooftop Solar Array – 18 Production Ave: Applicant 

Solar Strategies, on behalf of owner 18 Production Ave LLC, proposes to install a rooftop solar 
array on the Volkswagen dealership building at 18 Production Ave (TMP #110-004-000). The 
property is 2.14 ac and is located in the Industrial District. 

 
3. SPR-03-23 – Mini-Split Installation – 104 High St: Applicant Rightquick HVACR LLC, on 

behalf of owner JC&C Rentals LLC, proposes to install five mini-splits on the property at 104 
High St (TMP #549-095-000). The parcel is 0.2 ac and is located in the High Density District. 

 
4. SPR-04-15, Modification #2 – Golf Simulator Space – 3 Krif Ct: Applicant and owner 

Wizoshan LLC proposes to create a golf simulator space that will occupy ~2,000 sf of the 
existing ~22,000 sf Tree-Free Greetings building located at 3 Krif Ct (TMP #118-003-000). The 
parcel is 2.03 ac and is located in the Industrial District. 

 
5. SPR-742, Modification #1 – Burrell Housing Inn Carriage House Conversion – 112 

Washington St: Applicant and owner 112 Washington LLC proposes to convert the existing 
carriage house on the Burrell House Inn property at 112 Washington St (TMP #554-085-000) 
into a single-family home. The property is 0.27 ac and is located in the Downtown Transition 
District. 

 
6. SPR-12-18, Modification #1 – Restaurant & Night Club – 160 Emerald St: Applicant Podunk 

Productions LLC, on behalf of owner Toby Tousley, proposes to convert ~7,000 sf of the 
existing 95,656 sf building at 160 Emerald St (TMP #583-034-000) into a night 
club/restaurant. The site is 3.11 ac and is located in the Downtown Growth District. 

 

47 of 51



 

 

7. SPR-972, Modification #10 – Former Colony Mill Casino Building & Site Modifications – 210-
222 West St: Applicant and owner Brady Sullivan Keene Properties LLC proposes exterior 
building and site modifications to the former casino building located on their site at 210-222 
West St (TMP #576-009-000). The parcel is 6.49 ac and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
8. SPR-04-21, Modification #2 – Hundred Nights Rooftop Solar Array – 122 Water St: Applicant 

ReVision Energy, on behalf of owner Hundred Nights Foundation Inc., proposes to install a 
rooftop solar array on the Hundred Nights Shelter building at 122 Water St (TMP #585-027-
000). The parcel is 0.62 ac and is located in the Downtown Growth District. 

 
9. SPR-01-18, Modification #2 – Lehnen Industrial Services – 809 Court St: Applicant Lehnen 

Industries, on behalf of owner Hillsborough Capital LLC, proposes a change of use from an 
athletic center to a light industrial manufacturing use in the building at 809 Court St (TMP 
#219-005-000). The parcel is 1.81 ac and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
10. SPR-794, Modification #5 – MFS Parking Lot & Entry Drive Modifications – 40 Avon St: 

Applicant David Bergeron, on behalf of owner Monadnock Community Service Center Inc., 
proposes modifications to the western parking area and northern drive aisle on the 
Monadnock Family Services property at 40 Avon St (TMP #577-041-000). The site is 5.69 ac 
and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
11. SPR-905, Modification #5 – Cedarcrest Pavilion – 91 Maple Ave: Applicant and owner 

Cedarcrest Inc., proposes to construct a 24'x36' pavilion on the southeastern portion of their 
property located at 95 Maple Ave (TMP #227-018-000). The parcel is 5 ac and is located in 
the Low Density District. 

 
12. SPR-07-23 – Rooftop Solar Array – 56 Dunbar St #D: Applicant and owner the Monadnock 

Community Market Cooperative Inc. proposes to install a rooftop solar array on the building 
at 56 Dunbar St #D (TMP #574-041-000-00D). The parcel is 0.13 ac and is located in the 
Downtown Core District. 

 
13. SPR-08-23 – Rooftop Solar Array – 126 Eastern Ave: Applicant Sunergy Solutions LLC, on 

behalf of owners Terry & Frederica Bishop, proposes to install a rooftop solar array on the 
property at 126 Eastern Ave (TMP #588-031-000). The parcel is 0.95 ac and is located in the 
Low Density District. 

 
14. SPR-897, Modification #2 – U-Haul Covered Entry Staircases – 942 Winchester St: Applicant 

U-Haul of New Hampshire, on behalf of owner Amerco Real Estate, proposes to construct two 
covered staircases along the north and east facades of the new U-Haul building located at 
472 Winchester St (TMP #115-020-000). The parcel is 7.38 ac and is located in the Industrial 
District.  

 
15. SPR-09-23 – Apartment Building Window Removal & Mini-Split Installation – 174-176 

Church St: Applicant and owner 174-176 Church St LP proposes to infill an existing second-
story window and install a ground-mounted mini-split along the north portion of the eastern 
building facade of the apartment located at 174-176 Church St (TMP #574-026-000). The 
parcel is 0.14 ac and is located in the High Density District. 

 

48 of 51



 

 

16. SPR-01-18, Modification #3 – Lehnen Industrial Services Exterior Building Modifications – 
809 Court St: Applicant Lehnen Industrial Services Inc., on behalf of owner Lehnen Holdings 
LLC, proposes exterior building modifications on the property at 809 Court St (TMP #219-005-
000), including the replacement of all existing windows and the replacement of the existing 
siding with new white vinyl siding. The property is 1.81 ac and is located in the Commerce 
District. 

 
17. SPR-967, Modification #7B – Monadnock Food Co-op EV Chargers – 51 Railroad St #F: 

Applicant ReVision Energy, on behalf of owner the Monadnock Community Market 
Cooperative Inc., proposes to install 3 EV chargers and associated equipment on the 
Monadnock Food Co-op site at 51 Railroad St #F (TMP #574-041-000-00F) and the railroad 
condo property at 0 Cypress St (TMP #574-041-000-000). The condo parcel is 5.54 ac and is 
located in the Downtown Core District. 

 
18. SPR-870, Modification #2A – Apartment Design & Site Modifications – 310 Marlboro St: 

Applicant Lignin Group LLC, on behalf of owner 310 Marlboro St LLC, proposes changes to 
the approved apartment design and site layout on the property at 310 Marlboro St (TMP #595-
001-000) that were approved by the Planning Board in September 2022 as part of the Major 
Site Plan application, SPR-870 Modification #2. The parcel is 4.25 ac and is located in the 
Business Growth & Reuse District. 

 
19. SPR-461, Modification #4 – Autex Mazda Canopy & Exterior Renovations – 94 Key Rd: 

Applicant DB Architects LLC, on behalf of owner Grayson Spencer Real Estate LLC, proposes 
to make exterior building modifications and construct a 40' long by 22' wide canopy along the 
north facade of the Autex Mazda car dealership on the property at 94 Key Rd (TMP #110-018-
000). The parcel is 2 ac and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
20. SPR-942, Modification #3 – Parking Lot Lighting Modifications – 447 West St: Applicant 

Tattersall Electric Co., on behalf of owner Ellis Robertson Corp, proposes to remove sixteen 
existing light fixtures and install ten new pole lights in the West Street Shopping Center 
located at 447 West St (TMP #565-018-000). The parcel is 13.2 ac and is located in the 
Commerce District. 

 
21. SPR-947, Modification #14 – Stone Arch Village Senior Housing Rooftop Solar Array – 835 

Court St: Applicant and owner Stone Arch Village proposes to install a solar array along the 
southern portion of the Stone Arch Village Senior Housing building located at 835 Court St 
(TMP #220-033-000-005-001). The parcel is 1.71 ac and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
22. SPR-690, Modification #4 – Ash Brook Apartments Rooftop Solar Array – 191-195 Key Rd: 

Applicant and owner the Monadnock Affordable Housing Corp proposes to install rooftop 
solar arrays on the Ash Brook Apartment buildings located at 191-195 Key Rd (TMP #109-
007-000). The parcel is 3.13 ac and is located in the Commerce District. 

 
 

49 of 51



 

 

3 Washington Street 
Keene, NH 03431 

 

(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

January 22, 2024 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Mari Brunner, Senior Planner   
 
SUBJECT: Update on Minor Project Review Committee Approvals for 2023  
 
 

The following projects were reviewed by the Minor Project Review Committee (MPRC) during 
2023. 

 

 
 

1. SPR-06-19, Modification #1 – Site Plan – 20 Manchester St - Applicant and owner 560 Main 
Street LLC proposes to lease a portion of the Froling site at 20 Manchester St (TMP #114-012-
000) to Phil’s Tree Service for equipment and truck storage, create a second open yard rental 
space, construct an addition ~3,750 sf in size to an already approved 10,000 sf building, and 
make minor modifications to the landscaping and parking. The property is 9.88 ac and is 
located in the Industrial District.   
 

2. SPR-881, Modification #2 – Site Plan – 342 Winchester St – Applicant Sampson Architects, 
on behalf of owner Riverside Improvements LLC, requests an extension to the deadline to 
satisfy the precedent conditions of approval for the Minor Site Plan application, SPR-881 
Modification #2, for the renovation of the eastern tenant space and the construction of an 
addition ~321 sf in size to the building at 342 Winchester St (TMP #111-004-000-004) for use 
as a restaurant. The site is 0.68 ac and is located in the Commerce District.  
 

3. SPR-10-23 – Site Plan – Duplexes, 661 Main St - Applicant and owner the Wayne E. Brown Jr. 
Rev. Trust proposes to construct two duplexes that are each ~2,070 sf in size on the property 
at 661 Main St (TMP #120-056-000). The parcel is 0.70 ac and is located in the Low Density 
District. 

 

50 of 51



DATE TIME DESCRIPTION LOCATION

Thursday, January 18, 2024 CIP distributed to City Council & Planning Board  Council Chambers

Saturday, January 20, 2024 8:00 AM‐11:00 AM Saturday Workshop Heberton Hall

Thursday, January 25, 2024 5:30 PM
FOP Committee CIP review ‐ Admin Services & Community 

Services 
Council Chambers

Thursday, February 8, 2024 5:30 PM FOP Committee CIP Review  ‐ Municipal Development Services  Council Chambers

Thursday, February 22, 2024 5:30 PM FOP (if needed) CIP Review Council Chambers

Monday, February 26, 2024 6:30 PM Planning Board  Council Chambers

Thursday, March 7, 2024 7:00 PM CIP Public Hearing Council Chambers

Thursday, March 14, 2024 6:00 PM FOP Committee CIP recommendation Council Chambers

Thursday, March 21, 2024 7:00 PM Council CIP adoption Council Chambers

2025‐2031 Capital Improvement Program Timeline

51 of 51

mbrunner
Highlight

mbrunner
Highlight

mbrunner
Highlight


	2024_01_22_pb_agenda
	2023_12_18_PB_Minutes_MB & MF Edits
	U-Haul of South Keene_First Extension Request_Received 12-21-23
	Summit Packaging_Second Extension Request Letter_Received 01-12-24
	Keene Mini Storage Packet
	SPR-03-19, Mod. 3_Keene Mini Storage_Staff Report.pdf
	Keene Mini Storage Packet_NO SR.pdf
	Application_Received 11-09-23
	Narrative_Received 11-09-23
	Plan Set (includes updated elevations)_REVISED_Received 01-04-24_REDUCED
	Drainage Summary_Received 01-04-24
	Impervious Surface Plan & Calculations_Received 01-04-24
	Door Light Specification Sheet_Received 01-04-24
	Under Canopy Light Specification Sheet_Received 01-04-24
	Exterior Building Photos_Received 01-04-24


	Mini packet_186 Gunn Road CUP
	PB-2024-01_Surface Water CUP_186 Gunn Rd_Staff Report.pdf
	Mini packet_186 Gunn Road CUP.pdf
	Application_Received 12-15-23.pdf
	Narrative_Received 12-15-23.pdf


	2024 List of Administrative Approvals in 2023
	2024 List of Minor Project Approvals in 2023
	2025-2031 CIP meeting calendar



